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" STATE OF NEW YORK )
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD

i the Matterof

BRONXVILLE FACILITIES SUPPORT STAFF,

Petitioner,

-and- | S 8 . CASE NO. G-6043
BRONXVILLE UNION FREE sc:1-|00|_ DISTRICT '

Employer.

CERTIFlCATION OF REPRESENTAT]VE AND ORDER TO NEGOTIATE

A repre‘sentatlon proceeding havmg been conducted in the 'above-metter by the |
Publlc Employment Relations Board in accordance W|th the Publrc Employees’ Fair -
Empioyment Act and the Rules of Procedure of the Board, and. lt appearlng that a
negotlatmg representatlve has been selected : |

Pursuant to the authorlty vested in the Board by the Public Employeee Felr

) Employment Act,

IT IS HEREBY CERTlFlED that the Bronxwlle Facilities Support Staff has been

| demgnated and selected by a majonty of the employees of the above—named publ:c

) employer, in the unit agreed upon by the parties and described below, as their excluswe

" 'During the process of the petition, the incumbent empioyee ‘organtzanon the Bronxville

Teachers Association, Fagcilities-Unit, NYSUT, AFT, disclaimed any interest in .
contznumg to represent the pstitioned-for unit.



Certification - G-6043 - - - .

~ representative for the purpose of collective negotiations and the settlement of

grievances.

Included: All employees in the positions of Custodian, Head Clean‘er,
Messenger and Watch People/Security.

Excluded' All other employees.
FURTHER IT IS ORDERED that the above named pl.lblIC employer shall

negotlate coliectively with the Bronxwlle Facmtles Support Staff. The duty to negotiate

) ooI[ectrver rncludes the mutual oblrgatlon to meet at reasonable times and conferin -

good faith with respect to wages hours, and other terms and conditions of employment

or the negotlat|on of an agreement or any question ansmg thereunder and the

executlon of-a written agreement mcorporatlng any agreement reached if requested by

either party Such obllgatron does not compel either party to agree to a proposal or

_ reqwre the maklng of a concession.

DATED: May 2?, 2011
_ Albany, New York

OWW

Jerome Lef?ﬁwrrz |rman

eg@,_%/ﬁ\\

- SherlaS Cole, Member
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- STATE OF NEW YORK
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD

In the Matter of

UNIONDALE PUBLIC LIBRARY STAFF

ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner,
and- o  GASE NO. C-6052
_UNIONDALE PUBLIC LI_'BRAR\\_",-'T | |

~ Employer.

: “Emptoyment Act,

'CERTIFICATION OF REPRESENTATIVE AND ORDER 1O NEGOTIATE

A representation ptoceeding having been conducted in the above metter by the - |
Public Employment R'elatiens IBoard in'acc'ordarice with the Public Employees’ Fair
Emp]oyment Act and the Rules of Procedure of the Board, and it appearing that a
negot:atmg representatlve has been selected

Pursuant to the_aqthorlty vested in the Board by the Public Employees' Fair
IT IS HEREBY CERTIF!ED that the Umondale Public Library Staff Assomatlon

has been designated and selected by a majority of the employees of the above—hamed

~ public employer, in the unit agreed upon by the parties and described below, as their

exclusive representative for the purpose of collective negotiations and the settlement of -

gtievances.
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~

Included: Al regular full-time and part-time employees in the titles of
Librarian i, Librarian i, Librarian 1, Senior Typist Clerk, Typist
Clerk, Senior lerary Clerk, Cierk, Clerk Bi-Lingual, Page and
- Cleaner. 7
Excluded: The Library Director, Senior Account Clerk, Senior Typist Clerk who -
: works directly for the Library Director, Guard, part-time substitute
Clerk and part-time substitute Librarian | and all other employees.
FURTHER IT IS ORDERED that the above named public employer shall
negotiate oolleotively W|th the. Untondale Public lerary Staff Assoclatlon The duty to
- negotiate\_colleotively includes the mutual obligatlon to meet at reasonable times and
| confer in good faith with respect to-wages, hours, and othér terms and conditions of
e'mp!oyment, or the negotiation of an agree_me_ni, or any question arising fhereunder,
i ) " and the execution of a written agreement incorporating any agreement reached if
requested by either party. Such obligation does not compel either party to agree toa

proposal or require the maklng of a concession.

DATED: ,May 27, 2011
Albany, New York

..

/ Jerome Lefko . Chair y"
M@\

Sheila S. Cole Member




STATE OF NEWYORK
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD

In_the Matter of

PATROLMAN’S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION
OF SOUTHAMPTON TOWN, INC., ‘

| F’etitioner’, |

! 'CASE NO. CP-1168
-and - N _ _

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON,

Employer.

- GREENBERG BURZICHELLI GREENBERG P.C. (SETH H. GREENBERG &
GENEVIEVE E. PEEPLES of counsael), for Petltioner :

'LAW OFFICE OF VINCENT TOOMEY (VINCENT TOOMEY & JAMIEE L.
POCCHIARI of counsel), for Employer

W

ThlS case comes to the Board on exceptlons ftled by the Patrolmen’s Benevolent
ASSOCIatlon of Southampton Town, inc. (PBA) and cross—exoeptlons flled by the Town
of Southampton (Town) to a decision of an Admmlstratwe Law Judge (ALJ) The ALJ’s
decision d'lsmlss.e_d a PBA petition seeklng to place the posmoo of par‘t—tlme/seasonal
police ofﬁoer- (PSPO) into a unit of full-time po[ice .ofF cers- of the Town already . |
represented by PBA based upon a confhot of mterests caused by some full-tlme police
offlcers super\nsmg the PSPOs.

In the de0131on the ALJ rejected other bases raised by the Town for dlsm:ssmg

' 43 PERB 94001 (2010).



Case No, GP-1168. S - | _2-
the petition includingthe undisputed fact that PBJA'S constttution and bylavtfs exclude
PSPOs fromlmembership. The ALJ ijeasoned that it could not be presum_ed “that the
PBA will not fairly represent the PSPOs or tha.t a potential conflict of intetes_t exists
solely b_ase.d upon their exclusion frorn membership.” Th_e. ALJ aleo rejected the -
Town'’s argument that: “a conflict of intere'st exists between the PSPOs and unit
-employees because of the PBA’S Iengstandlng efforts to |Imlt the Town's employment of
PSPO’s, [determmmg that:] those ac’nons occurred when the PSPOs were not in the

PBA’s unit and the PBA had no duty to represent them. i

The Town filed cross-
| e>_<ceptions to the two above-quoted conclusions of the ALJ. |
The apglieable ‘facts ate set forth in the‘ALJ‘e'deeisien and are repeated here
only as necessary to decide the exceptions and cross-exeeptlons |
Slnce the m1d 1980 S, PBA has engaged in one iawsurt t" led several grievances
~and negotlated provisions in the collective _bargamlng agreement (CBA) wlth the Town,
which__ placed restrictions on the terms and con_diti_dns of empleyment of PSPOs. In
additio'n, during negotiations follo.wing the ﬁling of the'PBA’sl petttien, ite spekesman N
'advised the Tewn that it could save a substantial amount ot money by “getting' tid of" .
*the PSPOS. |

PBA’s const|tut|0n and bylaws declare PSPQOs to be ineligible for membersh|p

PBA presﬂdent Aube testified that if PBA’S petition is granted, the PBA membership

2 Supra, fiote 1, 43 PERB 14001 at p. 4008.

3 Supra, note 2.
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would “go ahead and change the by-laws so that the Ian'guage' in it teflects the
admittance of them.” However, he acknowledged that such a change wodld require a
favorable two—-thirds vote by the PBA members at its annual meeting in Aprtl or by a
favorable three-quarters yote by mail, and that he could not predict the ouicome. He |

_ -alao aoknowledged that during the pendency of its petition, PBA mérnbers voted on
amendments to the constitution and by- Iaws but a change in PBA membership eligibility

was not one of the proposals presented, .

DISCUSSION

_-We rejeot ttte-ALJ‘s conclusion tha\t the oategorioal_-exclusion of PSPOs from
© membership in- PBA is not a sufficient reasor']. for dismissing PBA’s p.etition. In City
Sohoo! D:stnot of the Cn‘y of thte Plains,* we held: | |

No employee orgamzatnon may be certified to

represent a unit if it refuses to admit some of the _

emp]oyees within suoh unitto mem’bership o _ -
Later, after the Act was amended to grant the Board |mproper practice Junsd[ctlon we
found that it was not i |mproper fora reoognlzed or certlfled employee organlzatlon to
revoke an ind ividual employee’s membership i in that orgamzatlon for cause, such as’
supporting a rival organization, because the “Board is not the _forum to regdlate the

”5

_internal affairs of an employee organization.” That ‘prOposition is not inconsistent with

our uniting deoision in City School District of the Cily of White Plains,’ where we:

*2 PERB 3009 at p. 3271 (1969)
' 5 CSEA (Bogaok) 9 PERB ‘[[3064 at p. 3110 (1976)

® Supra, note 4,
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'conclﬁded that a categorical exclusion of a cléss of employees .from memb_ership in an
employée Qrgani_zation is sufficient reason to dismiss that employee organization’s
" petition to accrete those emplbyees to the organizatioﬁ. | -
" Having found that PBA’s current prdhibition'against PSPOs becoming PBA .
members is ésufficient_reason for denying PBA’s wpetition; we need not considefwhether
the '20.—yea'r history of PBA’s adversarial poéition regarding PSPO’s, standing alone, is a -
_éufficﬁient reason for ué to find a conflict of interest warranting_diémissal of the petition.
We also need not consider PBA’_s_excep'tio_ns to the ALJ’s finding that the supervision
_ exercised by PBA unit erhployees___ over PSF’OS is sufficient to constitute a conflict of
' intefests, given the fra’gmenfation of éupewisory.oﬁicérs ffom the PBA unit.”
" 1T 1S, THEREFORE, O..RDERED that the petition must be, and hereby, ié._
dismissed. | ) |

DATED: May 27, 2011
. Albany, New York

\[ el
Jerome Lefkg,é(/ltz Chai yfan

- &@;‘g/@%

Sheila S. Cole, Member

) 7 Town of Southampton, 42 PERB 14018 (2008), 43 PERB 1/3000.15 (2010).



| STATE OF NEW YORK |
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD -

In the Matter of

LOCAL 237, INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF

. TEAMSTERS,

~ Charging Party,

CASE NO. U-28429
-and - : -

TOWN OF ISLIP,

Respondent.

, MEYER SUOZZI ENGLISH & KLEIN P.C. (BARRYJ PEEK & RANDI M.
MELNICK of counsel), for Chargmg Party

"BOND, SCHOENECK & KING, PLLC (ERNEST R. STOLZER & AMY M. CULVER
‘of counsel), for Respondent .

BO'ARD 'DEC]SION AND ORDER

f

This case comes to us on exceptions fi Ied by the Town of Islip (Town) and cross- |
except[ons_ by Local 237, International Brotherhood of Teamsters (Loeal 237) toa

decision’ by an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) on a charge, as amended, by Local 237

+

| alleging that the.Tan violated §209-a.1(d) of the Public Employees’ Fair Employment Act’

(Act) when it revoked the assignment of vehicles to employees in the Loca-l 237-
represented unit.
The ALJ fou nd that the Town s actlon violated §209-a 1(d) of the Act because it

constitutes a unllateral change of an 18-year o[d past practice of assigning véhicles on a

' 43 PERB {[4514 (2010).
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- permanent basis to unit employees represented by Local 237. The ALJ, however,
dismissed that portion of Local 237’s amended charge that alleged that the Town had
refused to negotiate the impact of the unilateral change. |

The Town's Exceptions

The Nature of the Past Practice

The Town ass_érts that it had authoriﬁed the use of ToWn vehicles by unit
em'ployee's subject to certain conditions'preceden{-: the employee is on cell 24/7 or-is
assigned to. mu.ltiple eites; and that such assignﬁents were approved by the Towr_r
‘Supervisor. -I'As to the iaet-of th_ese,'F"ERB has heldl that “the extlended period of the |
| _pracﬁce...constituted circuo‘lstanfial' evidence sufficient to establish a prima facie proof of
the employer’s knowledge thereby imposing upon the r['own] the burden of proof of |
demonstratlng that.. 1t dld not have actual or construotlve knowledge of the past praotlc:e 2
Inasmuch as the Town Introduced no ewdence to demonstrate that the Town Superwsor_
" lacked actual or constructive aknow[edge,' We conclude that he, and his prede'oessors, if
any, over a'ﬁ 18-year perioo, knew of. the practice end by'f.heir sile_.nc‘e oohooned it.

As to the two other condlt[ons precedent, the veh:cles were afforded to
apprommetely 45 unlt employees for Ilmited personal use, commutlng fo and from work;
but not for other personal us_es such as transportmg family members. The Town argues
that it has the managerial prerogative to revoke the personal vehicle use by erhployees -

~ because its responsibility to maximize fiscal efficiencies outweighs the interests of those

2 Chenango Forks Cent Sch Dist, 40 PERB 13012 at 3047 (2007)(subsequent h:story
omitted). See also, City of Oswego 41 PERB 13011 (2008)
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unit elﬁpioyee_s whose past use of Town Vehicles was términated.

 The Towh’s argument misconstrues the applicable law. fhe Appellate Division,
Fourth Department sustained a prior PERB holding that economic benefits, including
émpl_oyeé use of an employer’é vehicle, are the quintessence of rhandatory subjects of - |
négotiations, stating: “PERB’s determination thét employee use of aﬁ _emplo-y'er~owned car
for personal purposes is an economic benefit énd a ferm and condition of efnployment ;
which cénnot be unilateralljwithdrawn- is‘reasonable _élnd $Upﬁoﬂed Iby sqbs’_tantial

::3

evidence.” Two years later, the Appellate Division, Second Department sustained another

P»ERB' decision that reached the same conclusion.*

Th'e Town Code and Administrative becedure Act

The Town _claims that it,h_as a étati.;tory ri.gh't fo revoke _the 1I8-}Ifear old past practic_e_.. |
fts argumént is bremi.se'd upon a 1968 Town Code .priovision,lwhich was supplemented by
a Town _\/ehicié Poliéy adopted by the ToWn unilaterally on April 28, 2008 and put into
éffeqt_bn_June 9; 2008. Ih ad-dition, it relies upon its 1990 Administrative Proced,u_ré
Manuall prOviéion_ dealing with Tow.n vehicle usage. We rejec’_f {his_ argument. |
| ) The 1968 Town Code pré)vis'ion states: | |

- §14-12, .Us'e of '_I‘oWn-owned eqUiipment or propert.y..

No officer or employees shall request or permit the use of
Town-owned vehicles, equipment, material or property for

3 County of Onondaga, 12 PERB 43035 (1979), confd County of Onondaga v New York

State Pub Empl Rel Bd, 77 AD2d 783, 783-4, 13 PERB {7011 at 7022 (4' Dept 1980).

4 Couhty of Nassau, 13 PERB 113095 (1980), confd County of Nassau v New York State

Pub Empl Rel Bd, 14 PERB {7017 (Sup Ct Nassau County 1981 affd, 87 AD2d 1006, 15
PERB 17012 (2d Dept 1982), app denied 57 NY2d 601, 15 PERB 17015 (1982).
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personal convenience or profit, except when such services

- are available to the public generally or are provided as
municipal policy for the use of such officer or employee in
the conduct of official business.

Whether the Town Code provision has any applicability, it is clearly not an
~authorization for thé Town’s unilateral action in the present case. A local law is invalid to
the extent that it precludes collective negotiations that are mandated by the Act’ and a
unilateral change to a mandatory subject by an employer is a violation of its duty to
negotiate in good faith, actions by its IegiSIativé'body notwithstanding.® In addition, when -_
.an enforceable practice is inconsistent with an employer’s preexisting rule, the employer
cah no longer rely upon that policy to unilatérally end or mddify the practice without

violating §209-a.1(d) of the Act.” A fortiori, the Town'’s reliance on its Administrative

Procedure Manual provisions is unavailing.

Cdnditions for Use of Town Vehicles to _Cc')mmute to Work

.The Town Code and Admini,strative Manual set f;:)rth conditioné limiting the _
| authorization. pf unit empibyeeé u_éing ;i‘_own vehicles to c_ommUt'edto work. Inasmuch Ias |
the use of 'I_'own vehicles to commute is an economic benéfit, it is a mandatory subject
déspite those conditions. The Town ,I therefore, cannot éhaﬁge the past practice abSent an .

agreement wi_thllLoc.aI 237. Here, the Town did not even seek such an agreé_ment, which

* Doyle v.City of Troy, 51 AD2d 845, 9 PERB 17510 (3d Dept 1976).

s Saratoga Springs Cent Sch Dist, 11 PERB 3037 (1978) confirmed sub nom Saratoga
Springs Cent Sch Dist v New York State Pub Empl Rel Bd, 68 AD2d 202, 12 PERB 1]7008
(3d Dept 1979), Iv denied, 47 NY2d 711 12 PERB 1]7012 (1979).

7 Village of Catskill, 43 PERB 113001 (2010).



B}

- that that was rejected.

Case No. U-28429 l | o _ 5

is a condition precedent under the Act for making a change lnvolwng a mandatory subject

Town Ecrurpment

The To’wnlasserts that just as PERB.has held that it is a management prerogative
for a public employer to restrict its police officers from carry_ing weapons while worki_n‘g, we
should also hold it to be an employer's breroaative to reallocate vehicles. The Town
reasons that they are both equipment' That is a faulty analogy. The basis of our decision
regardlng weapons was that such equipment relates directly to the manner and means by
which pollce services are prowded fo its constltuency The allocation of vehicles for |
employees personal use does not 8 |

According]y, we deny the Town\’s exceptions.

 Local 237’s Cross-Exceptions

Impact Neqotlatlons

Local 237’3 first exceptlon states that the ALJ erred in finding that it falled to
establish that it made a demand to bargaln the'impact of the Town’s L_rnllateral'

discontinuation of a past practice. That is a .rnisreading of the ALJ’s decision, which

- states: “Local 237's proof fails to establish that it made a demand to bargain impact and

*® (emphasis added) Indeed, the ALJ correctly found that the Town

8 The Town cites {o an ALJ decision, which held that the provision of bullet proof vests to

police officers is a non-mandatory subject of negotiation. However, when the subject

~ came before the Board for the first time in City of New York, 40 PERB 13017 (2007) we

determined that the subject is mandatorlly negotuable

% Supra, note 1, 43 PERB 4514 at 4561.
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- offered to negotiate the i'mpact in a June 6, 2008 letter to Local 237.“_} On Jone 9 2008,

Local 237 responded with a letter to the Town dermanding impact negotiations. ITh_e re.oonjd\l

~evidence demonstrates that following this exohange of letters, neither party raised the
. issue again. Based Upon these facts and oirotlrhstanoes we conclude that Looal 237 has

 failed to prove that the Town refused to bargam the |mpaot of its-decision. -

Wlthdrawal of Town s Neqotlatlon Prooosai

Local 237 exoepts‘to the ALJ's conclusion that it failed to preeent sufficient
evidence to find that the Town engaged in bad faith bargaining when it withdrew its vehicle
use proposal during the course of collective negotia'ti_ohs. Although the Town’s unilateral

change in its vehio!erpolicy violetes §209-a.1(d) of the Aot we find that the facts presented

in this record- do not demonstrate that the Town s w1thdrawal of its propoeal constltutes a

separate and dlstmct vuolatton of §209-a. 1(d) The evidence reveals that the Town
withdrew its pifoposa[ based upon an erroneous belief that the change was a managerieil
orerogati\}e. | |

Accordingly, we deny Local 237°s oross-exoeptlons

Based upon the foregomg, we affirm the ALJ s decision f ndlng that the Town '

'violated §209-a.1(d) of the Act.

'THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Town shall:
1. Forthwith restore the vehicle assignments for commutation between home
and work to those unit members who enjo'yed'tlhe benefit prior to April 4, 2008;

2. ,. Forthwith make whole unit employees for the extra expenses incurred as a

1% Supra, note 1, 43 PERB 4514 at 4563, . 33.
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result of the unilateral withdrawal of the vehicle assignment(s), if any, together with interest
at the maximum legal rate; and

3. Slgn and post notice in the form attached at all physncal and electronlc

locations customarily used to post notices to unit employees.

'DATED: -May 27, 2011

Albany, New York - _ :
| JWW 7
Jerome Lefkofitz, Ch “Mman

%@L_yg/g__

“". 8heila 8. Cole] Member
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NOTICE TO ALL
EMPLOYEES |

PU RSUANT TO
_THE DECISION AND ORDER OF THE

NEW YORK STATE |
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD.

™

and in order to effectuate the policies of the

'NEW YORK STATE
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' FAIR EMPLOYMENT ACT

we hereby notify all employees of the Town of Islip, in thé unit represented by Local

237, International Brotherhood of Teamsters, that the Town will forthwith:

1. Restore the vehicle assignments for commutation between home and work, to
. those unit members who enjoyed the benefit prior to Aprll 4, 2008 ' -

2. Make who!e unlt employees for the extra expenses mcurred as a result of the
- unilateral withdrawal of the vehicle asmgnment(s) if any, together with interest at -

the maximum Iegal rate.-

On behalf of the Town of Islip

This Notice must remain posted for 30 consecutive days from the date of posrmg, and must not be altered,
defaced, or covered by any other. matenai , _
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STATE OF NEW YORK _
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD

In the Matter of

VILLAGE OF CANTON,

o Charging Party, CASE NO. U-29658
-and - L . :
CANTON POLICE ASSOCIATION, - B
- 'Respondent.'

- DANIEL C. McKILLIP, for Charging Party

JOHN M. CROTTY, ESQ,, for Respondent

BOARD DECISION AND ORDER

This case comes to the Board on exceptions filed by. t_he" Cantoﬁ Police

Association (AsSooiation) to a decision of an Administrative Law Judgé (ALJ) on an

improper practice charge filed 'by the Village of Canton (Village) alleging that the

Association violated §209-a.2(b) of the Public Employees’ Fair Employment Act-(Act) by

submitting a proposal with reépect toa nonhandétor_y subject of negotiations to

compulsory interest arbitration.

Based upon a stipulated record, the ALJ concluded that the Village’s charge was

timely filed and that the at-issue proposal was nonmandatory. The Association ha's.

filed exceptions to both of these conclusions. The Village- supports the ALst decision

143 PERB 14597 (2010).
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and als.o asserts that the Association’s éxc:epti_oﬁs'are untimejy pursﬁant to §213.2 of
. the Rules of Procedure (Rules). | |
FACTS
The 'V.illagé and the Association are pafties to a collectively ﬁegotiafed
agreement (agreement) that expi're.d on M’ay_31, 2008. Article 34 61‘ thé expired
agreement states-:_ - | -
N ARTICLE 34 .

WORK SCHEDUE

Section 1. The work schedule shall be bid by senlorlty on an annual baS|s
commencing no earlier than November 1% and completed by November 15" of
each year, to be effective January 1%, Thereafter, by seniority, those employees .
who are scheduled for the “B” and “C” lines shall select (2) twenty-eight (28) day
tours of duty on the “A” Line {or “D” line if staffed) for that calendar year. The
employees on the “A” line {or “D” line if staffed) at that time, may switch with that

_employee coming to the “A” line (or “D” line if staffed) as set herein. The

Department shall make its best effort to ensure that the affected employees(s)
'shall not be required to work sixteen (16) consecutive hours in making the tour of
duty.switch. To avoid having an employee work sixteen (16) consecutive hours,

- the Chief of Police may elect to waive an eight (8) hour tour, that the employee
will make up on a later date at the Chief of Police’s discretion. The work -
schedule shall be posted no later than December 21° of each year, and remain
unaltered for the entire calendar year (January through December) except as
may be set forth below and shall consist of the followmg fou rs of duty '

‘A’ L|ne, - 11:00 p.m. {o 7:00 a.m.
““B”Line - 7:00a.m.fo 3:00 p.m.
- “C"Line - 3:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m.

‘D" Line - 7:00 p.m. to 3:00 a.m..

The “A” “B” and “C” llnes shall be staffed flrst The “‘D” [me is an
optlonal_tour of duty and shall be staffed and bid, as set forth above, after the
‘A", “B” and “C” lines have been staffed. The “D” line may be used pursuant to
Section 2 herein.

‘ Section 2. All employees shall remain on théir bidded annual work schedule
and shall not be removed to avoid the payment of overtime, except due to an -
emergency as defined by statute, time off for vacation, Holiday, patrol coverage
or fraining, with notice being provided to the employee at least twenty-eight (28)
calendar days prior to the change by the Chief of Police or designee. There shall
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not be more than a total of fi fty (50) tour of duty changes for the entire unit each
calendar year (January through December). All personal leave or sick leave use
shall be covered through overtime.

An employee requesting time off who provides twenty-eight (28)
calendar days notice or more shall not be unreasonably denied and the Chief of
Police or designee shall make their best effort to grant the request. In the event
a request is less than twenty-eight (28) calendar days, the Chief of Police or
designee may deny such request. In that event, the employee may “switch” or

“swap” his/her tour of duty with another employee, as set forth in Section 5
herein. i

Section 3. In the event a vacahcy in title occurs, the Village shall fill that
vacancy within a reasonable time thereatter. :

. Section 4. Employe_e schedules can be -chahged with notice if the purbose is
to give another employee time off for vacation, Holiday or optional training time.
Requests for time off for personal leave, mandatory tra[nmg or sick time will be
paid through overtime. :

Seétio’n’ 5. Each employee retains the right to “switch” or swap- his/her.
tour of duty with another employee, without restriction, subject to the approval of
' the Chief of Police, which shall not be unreasonably denled
-+ On November 17, .2009, the Assomatrqn filed and served'a petition seeking.to
have the parties’ impasse referred to corﬁpulsdry int.erest -afbitration. -Among the
Association’s proposals in the petition for compulsory interest arbitration were the
deletion of sectidns 2,3,4and 5and fh'e addi_tion'of a new section 6 in Ariicle 34 of the

expired agreement: E

New Section 6 — Two (2) employees shall be scheduled and working
between the hours of 7:00 p.m. to 3:00 a.m. every Tuesday and Saturday.

On November 19, 2009, the Village received the Association’s petition.” On the

- same day, the Village was notified by our Office of Conciliation that the Village's

résponse'to the petition was due on or before December 4, 2009. The Village served

and filed on December 2,'_2009,_ its response to the petition and an improper practice

charge élleging that the Association violated §209-a.2(b) of the Act by submitting the
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new Section 6 proposal to interest arbitration. The Village, however, withdrew its initial

response to the petition and served and filed a different response on December 4,

2009.

The Associatio._n filed an answer to the charge asserting as an afﬁrmative

defense that the charge is 'untimel‘y because it was not filed within ten workihg 'déys of

receipt of the petition and it was not filed simultaneously with the Village's response to -

the petitidn.

- DISCUSSION
We begin with the Village’s contention that the Association’s exceptions to the |
ALJ’s decision are untimely. Pursuant to §213.2(a) of the Rulés, exceptions must be

filed within 15 working days after rec:e_ipt of an ALJ’s decision. In the present case, the

Association received the'_ALJ.’s decision on October 22, 2010, and filed its exceptions

on November 12, 2010. ExCIuding the date that the decision was received by the
As_sociation', as we must, the exceptions are timely and therefore propeﬂy before us.?
Next, we turn to the Assbciation’s procedural argument that the Village’s charge

is untimely pursuant to §205.6(b) 'of.'the Rules because it was not filed simultaneously

~with the Village’s response. - -

In rejecting the Association’s timeliness defense, the ALJ 'correctlyﬂcitedl City of

* Elmira® (Elmira), where the Board stated clearly and unequivocally that:

In relevant respect, §§205.5(a) and 205.6(b) of our Rules
together.require an improper practice charge raising a [sic.]
objection to the arbitrability of a demand to be filed at or
before the time the response to the petition for interest

2 New York City Bd of Educ and UFT (Jenkins), 28 PERB {13058 (1995).

325 PERB 93072 (1992).
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arbitration is filed.*

' 'Our_interpretation of §205.6(b) of the Rules in Eimira is fufly consistent with the
explicit terms of the Rule, which states that a charge by a respondent ‘may not be filed
after the date of the filing of the res}:_ohse.” (émphasis added)

Nevertheless, the Association’s brief in support of its exceptions does not
reference the wording of §206.5(b) of the Rules or cite and distinguish Elmira. Instead,
the Association’s entire argument is premised upbn the thin reed of an obvious' _
misstatement contained in the following footnote in South Nyack/Grand View Joint
Police Administration Board:> -

| Notwithstanding the Assistant Directors [sic] determination, _
-§205.6(c) of our Rules requires that a petition for declaratory
ruling may not be filed after the date of the filing of the
« - ‘response to the petition for interest arbitration. The Police
Board’s January 9, 2002 filing of the declaratory ruling petition -
on PERB’s form was not, therefore, timely as it was not flled
simulftaneously with its response to the PBA’s pet|t|0n
(emphasis added) B
Based upori the explicit terms of thé applicable Rule and our decision-in Elmira, the -
Association’s,re[iance on this footnote is without any merit.

in the present case, the charge is timely because it was filed on December 2,
2010, two days pricjr to the date when the Village was_dbligated to ﬁlé its response.
"The Village‘s withdrawal of its initial response and the filing of a d’if_fereht response on

December 4, 201'0, did not affect the timeliness of the charge under §206.5(b) of the

Rules.

* Supra, note 3, 25 PERB {3072 at 3148.
535 PERB 3007 (2002). |

® Supra, note 5, 35 PERB 93007 at 3015, n. 3.
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~ Finally, we examine the Association’s assertion that the at-issue demand should

be treated as a mandatory subject based upon the conversion theory of negotiability

first adopied in City of Cohoes?(Cohoes). Under Cohoes, a nbnmandétory subject

L

_contained in a collectively negotiated agreemer'lt is converted into @ mandatory subject’

betwe'en. the parties to that agreement. _

In To'Wn of_'Fishkﬂ! Poffbe Fraternity, Inc,® ('Fishkﬂl) Wé aﬁplied the Cohoes. |
conversion t-heo.r'y 'in finding that a proposal s.eekling to establish minimum staffing for-
each touf of duty was mandatory because it sought to modify a nonmandatory pro‘Qiéion "

in an agreement, which granted the employer the sole discretion to designate “tours of |

duty, and the number of officers per tour.”®

In City of New York;1° we expressly rejected the argument, however; that a
nonmandatory proposal is converted into a mandatory.one merely because it seeks o
Irn.odifﬂy a'm,andatory term in an expired agreementf

‘We are not persuaded that there is any rationale
under the Act for the expansion of the Cohoes
conversion theory that would transform nonmandatory
subjects not already contained in an agreement into
mandatory subjects. Unlike the negotiating disparity
that the Board sought to remedy in Cohoes, no
structural imbalance exists between the parties with
respect to the negotiability of nonmandatory subjects
outside of an agreement. Neither an employer nor an
employee organization is obligated to negotiate such a
- subject and they are mutually impacted when a
nonmandatory subject is - incorporated into an -

731 PERB {]3020 (1998) (subsequent history omitted).

.8 39 PERB 13035 (2006). .

° 39 PERB {3035 at 3115.

°40 PERB 93017 (2007) (subseq_uehtly history omitted).
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agreement it is converted, as a matter of Iaw [nto a
mandatory subject to subsequent negotiations."’
| In the present case, the Association asserts that its proposal is mandatory unde;
Fishkill because _th_e prOpo'saI seeks to modify Article 34, §1_ with reepect to the Village’_s
discretion to staf_f the Optionel “D” line from 7:00 p.m. to 3:00 pm We disagree. Unlike

the nonmandatory contract provision in Fishkill, which granted the employer the

| discretion to determine the number of officers to work each tour, Article 34, §1 gives the

'Vill'age the option to. schedule a fourth line, a mandatory subject. This section of the °

parties’ preseht agreement is not a minimum staffing provision or a provi'sien granting
the Village the contractual dieeretion fo deterrﬁine the number of staff members to work
a particular shift. Therefore, as the ALJ correctly concluded, the Association’s -

honrriendatory propoeal is not shfﬁciently?-rela'ted fo e nonmandetory subject in the

" parties’ agreement which is subject to. convereion under Cohoes.

Based upon the foregomg, we deny the Assomatlon s exceptions and afflrm the
ALJSs dec>|3|on
IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Association withdraw its

proposal. -

 DATED: May 27, 2010

Albany, NewYork R - f 7

_ Loy e~ -
/ Jerome Lef%w:tz C-,ﬁélrman |

&2@_@/&_\

<~ Sheila S. Cole, Member

" Supra, note 10, 40 PERB 93017 at 3066.
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BOARD DECISION AND ORD DER

This case comes to the Board on exceptions- filed by the City of Syracuse (City)

'to.‘a' decision of an Administrative Law Ju\dge' (ALJ) on an improper practice charge filed -

‘by' the Civil Sérvice Employees Association’,- Inc., Local 1000, AFSCME, AFL-CIO

(CSEA) alleging that the City violated §209—a.1 (d) of the Public Emlployeés‘ Fair

'-Employmént Act (Act) when it unila'terallylchanged _the' existing residency :requirement

by mandéting current unit employees to be domiciled in 'the City and by unilaterally .

imposing a requirement on employees to submit a residenby affidavit setting- forth

specific information along with the production of documents including tax returns and

~ bank stafements.

Followmg a hearing, the ALJ issued a de0|51on concludlng that that the City
violated §209-a. 1(d) of the Act when it unllaterally lmposed the res:dency affidavit

reqmrement, and dlsml_ssed the remalnde_r of the charge. The ALJ’s remedial order
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directed the City to discontinue the use of the residency affidavit, remove and destroy
all reports and other documents emanating from that requirement, reinstate and .make
whole anls‘/ unitemployees who \ruere terminated as the result of the. affidavit

- reqwrement and S|gn and post a notice.” | |

EXCEPTIONS

In its exceptlons the City asserts that the residency affidavit requwement
constitutes a prohibited subject of negotiati‘ons based upon the terms of the City -
Charter In the alternative the City contends that the new requirement is nonmandatory
-because re3|dency is a qualification of employment the affidavit is not a substantial
change from its prior practtce and the affidavit is only required when the Clty is
investigating the resldency status of unit employees FlnaI[y, the Clty excepts to the

: ALJ s proposed remedlal order CSEA supports the decision of the ALJ. R

Basecl upon our review of the record and our consideration of the partles
arguments we affirm the deC[SIOI'I of the ALJ. |

| FACTS

The applrcable facts are fully set forth in the ALJ’ s decrsmn They are repeated _ |
here only as necessary to address the City’s exceptlons

Whlie the City Charter was originally enacted by the Legls[ature in 1885 the
reS|dency reqmrement in the current Charter was enacted by the Clty in 1960. Sectlon
8 112.2 of that Charter states:

Employees of the C|ty shall be at the time of their
- appoiniment and continue to be during their continuance in

143 PERB 114565 (2010).

ZL 1885 c 26 423 South Salma Street Inc. v City of Syracuse 68 NY2d 474,n. 5
(1986)
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the employment of the city, residents of the city of Syracu.se
. except as otherwise provided by law, local rule or ordinance
of the council. :

Since 1990, the City has actively sought to enforoe its residency 'reouirement.
Commenoing in‘ 1892, the City implemented a residency monitoring program, which
mandated each employee to prepare,l sign and submit, ona regular basis, a
certification form attesting to his or her residence. In 2001, the City modified the -

“monitoring program by ohanging the certification form to mandate that an employee
aol(nowledge'that he or she understands the residency reqoirement |

Under the monltorlng program a City investigation is commenced when the City
Office of Personnel and Labor Relatlons suspects that an employee is not in
compllanoe with the reS|denoy reqwrement As part of the City's |nvestlgat|on an
'employee is offered three OptlonS submit “acceptable proof” of Clty remdency, obtaln a

.. residency waiver; or restore City resndenoy and provide a notice of address change.
'_Thelforms' of “aooeptable proof” of residency include documents such as mortgage

| statements, rental agreements and ut[l|ty bills. In addltlon at least two unit employees
submltted sworn statements from others to demonstrate City residence.

In February 2007, the City began requiring unit members suspeoted of \_rio'lating
the residency. r'eduirement o sign and stilbmit a sworn twelve-paragraph Affidavit of City

_ Residency (residency affidavit). The residency al‘ﬁdavit supplemen’ts the certification of.
residency that all City employees are required fo file. The afﬁdavit' mandates sworh
respon‘ses from an employee with respect to his or her residency, voter registration,.
parentage of school-age children, -s'ohools attended by those ohi_ldren, the address
where personal mail is received and whether the employee has applied and received a

¥

property tax exemption underthe STAR program. In addition, the residency affidavit
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requires the employee to submit five forms of documentation: proof of a mortgage ora

fenta[; federal and state income tax returns for the prior two years with conﬁdentiai

information redacted; two bank statements with conf[dentlal mformatlon redacted; and a
New York State drwer s license and/or a vehicle reglstratlon If an employee is unable

to fully satisfy those documentation requirements, he or she must submit a sworn

" explanation. The employee must also swear that the documents submitted were hot_

obtained under false pretenses or altered. Finally, the residency affidavit requires the

employee to swear fo the following:

| UNDERSTAND AND AGREE THAT ANY STATEMENT IN

THIS AFFIDAVIT MAY BE USED IN AN EMPLOYMENT

TERMINATION HEARING OR ANY OTHER PROCEEDING
- PERTAINING TO MY EMPLOYMENT WITH THE CITY.

DISCUSSION

“Contrary to the City’s contention, the residency affidavit requirement is not a -

prohibited su bjecf of negotiatiohe under P_atro!men’s Benevolent Association of the City

" of New York, Inc. v New York State Public Employment Relations Board *(hereinafter, -

NYCPBA). 'In NYCPBA, t.h'e Court of Appea[s held that a special state police

disciplinary law that pr’e—dates Civ Sei' Law §§75 and 76 and gfante local oﬂ’icials the

.power and authority over pollce diSClphne preempts the negotiablllty of pohce dlsmplme _

under the Act. ‘ In the present case, the City Charter resadency provus:on was not
enacted by the Leglslature, it is not a police dlSCllenary p_rows:on subject to Civ SerLaw

§76.4 and it is silent with respect to the epplicable -preeedure_s for enforcing the

°6 NYSd 563 39 PERB 17006 (2006).

* City of Ae'bany, 42 PERB ﬂ3005 (2009) Tarrytown PBA 40 PERB 1[3024 (2007)
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residency requirement. Furthermore, the City hae not identified a state public policy
1that is strong enough to exclude the residency affidavit from collective negotiations
under fhe Act.®> Therefore, we find no merit to the City’s brehibition argument.

| The City’s argument that the reeidency affidavit is a nonmandatory subject under
the Act is equally without me_rit. The affidavit requirement isl applicable to current
employees under investigation and cannot be reasohably eonstrued as an employment
quelificatio‘n. In addition, ih City of Schenectady,® we held thet the unilateral imposition
of a residency affi.davit requirement on uhit 'mefnbers cohstituted a m'andatery subject of
negotiations because it was a substantial ehange in their terms and conditione of
“employment. We reach the eame conclusion in the present case.

Altheugh' unit'merhbers have beee required to participate in recordkeeping with
respect to residency sifce 1992, including submitting “acceptable ei‘oof’_"of residency
upon the City’s request,_the ne'w'affidavit requiremerit constitutes a substantiel ehange
in the form'and substance of recordkeeping del'egate_d by the City to uhit members.

Under the newlrequirement, an employee may be obligated to pay a notary fee

- _ 1o obtain the necessary notarization of the affidavit. Furthermore, the requirement of

sworn factual statements may make an employee vilnerable to criminal prosecution
 under the Penal Law if it is eileged that the affidavit contains a false statement. The |
affidavit requirement also raises ei'gniﬁeant personal privacy issues by mandating the .

disclosure of an emp_loyee’s parental status, the schools aﬁended by an employee’s

N

® In support of its prohibition argument, the City does rely upon Pub Off Law §30.4(3).-
Even if that statute was applicable to the City, however, the residency requirement
would be nonmandatory, and not prohibited. See, City of Mount Vernon, 18 PERB
113020 (1985); Salamanca Police Unif, CSEA, 12 PERB 113079 (1979).

© 26 PERB 13025 (1993).
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children and the employee’e ;foter registration status. Unlike the City’s former practice,
each employee suspected of violating the residency requirement is 'how required fo |
state whether he or she has applied for and received a property tax exemption.
Furthermore, each s'uspect employee must attach a driver's Iicense and/or vehicle
registration, bank statements end income tax returns to tlhe affidavit,
' Finalty, we deny the City’s-exception-to the AlLJ’s p_ropose.d remedial order. '
~ Pursuant to.§_205.5(d') of the Act, PERB has broad remectiel authority te order make-
.w_hole relief including ordering a party to cease and desist from engaging in an .tr"nproper, '
* practice, and to order such affirmative relief that will effectll.late.the policies of the Act.
Following a careful review of the record,' we affirm the ALJ’S propoeed temedial order,

|

as modified.” _
IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the City: < -
1. resclnd and cease enforcement or |mplementat|0n of the requ:rement that unit
_ emp[oyees complete the “Affidavit of Clty ReSIdence
2. remove and destroy all re_ports or other documente submitted by unit
| employees or genereted by the City or its agents pursuant to its 'requirement
that they cornp[ete swear to sign and return the “Aft" davit of C[ty Residence”
from any files kept or malntalned by the City or any of its agents;
3. remstate and make whole, with interest at the maxrmum legal rate, any unlt

employees who were terminated based on their failure to complete the

" We have modified the remedial order to the extent of requiring the City to post the
attached notice at all physical and elecironic iocations normally used to communicate

- with unit employees. See, State of New York, 43 PERB 13046 (2010); State of New
York (Dept of Correctional Services), 43 PERB ]3035 (2010); NYCTA, 43 PERB 3038
(2010).
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“Affidavit of City Residence” or who were términated based on the
information they provided to the City in that affidavit;

4, Sign and post the attacf;ed notice at all physica_l and eléctronic locations -
customarily used to _post' notices to unit employees.

DATED: May 27, 2011
_ Albany, New Yo_rk

Do To ot

Jerome Léfkg{éitz, Ch}#’person

,Me»\

Sheila S. Cole Member




- NOTICE TO ALL
EMPLOYEES

PURSUANTTO
THE DECISION AND ORDER OF THE

NEW YORK STATE
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD

and in order to eﬂectuate the po[,ic':ies of the

: 'NEW YORK STATE
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' FAIR EMPLOYMENT ACT

we hei'eby notify all employees of the City of Syracuse in the unit represented by the
Civil Service Employees Association, Inc., Local 1000, AFSCME AFL-CIO that the

- City of Syracuse will forthwith:

M

. not enforce or implement the requwement that unit employees complete |
~ the “Affi da\nt of City Residence’; .

2. remove and des_troy all reports or other documents submitted by unit
' employees or generated by the City or its agents pursuant to its requirement
that they complete, swear to, sign and return the “Affidavit of City Residence”
from any files kept or maintained by the City or any of its agents;

3. reinstate and make whole, with interest at the maximum legal rate, any unit
employees who were terminated based on their failure to complete the
“Affidavit of City Residence” or who were terminated based on the information
they provided to the City in that affidavit. - :

on behalf of City of Syracuse -

: ~ This Notice must remain posted for 30 consecutive da vs from the date of postmg, and must
-~ . not be altered, defaced, or covered by any other material. —



. STATEOFNEWYORK
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NIAGARA FALLS POL[CE CLUB, INC,,

Charglng Party, :

CASE NOQ, U-29287
-and - _ _

CITY OF NIAGARA FALLS, -
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WILLIAM E. GRANDE, ESQ., for Charging Party
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BOARD DECISION AND ORDER -

_This case comes to the B'o_ard on exceptions filed by the City of Niagara Falls

- (City) to a decision of an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) on an improper practice

charge, as amended, filed by the Niagara Falls Police Club, Inc. (Police Club) alleging
that the City violated §209-a.1(d} of the Public Employees’ Fair Employme'nt Act (Act)
when it unilaterally im‘plemeh'ted an amendment to its residenoy rules by eI'im-inating the

procedure for relnstatement of a unit employee after reestabhshment of resu:iency and

the right of relnstatement to the employee s position, if vacant.

. On a stipulated record, the ALJ concluded that the subject matters of the
amended charge constitute mandatory subjects 'of negotiations under the Act, and that

the City violated the Act by unilaterally impleme'ntilng the amendment to its residency

rules.!’

" EXCEPTIONS

The City excepts to the ALJ’s conclusion that the eubject matters of the charge

1 44 PERB 114510 (2011).
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are mandatory subjects of negotiations rather than a non- mandatory pre-employment
qualifications. [n addition, it asserts that the Police Club waived its right to negotiate the
| subje'ots based upon its failure to demand negotiatiOns. Finally; the City contends that
the at-issue subjects constttute prohipiteo subjects of negotiations. The Police Club
supports the ALJ's deo|31on | o
| Based upon our review of the record and our consideration of the partles
_ argo ments, we aljftrm the ALJ’s decision.
| FACTS
The Police Club represents a unit of Ntagara Falls Polioe Department employees
including unitorr_ned police officers, deteotives, oommunioation teohnicians and polioe
' dtspatohers. The City and the Police Club are parties to. a oo!lective]ynegotiated .
agreement (agreement) If_or the period January'. 1, 2004-December 31, 2007.
| In 1984 the Niagara Falls City Councit (City Coun.oil) enaoted a Local Law
|mposmg a reswlency requirement for all new City employees Pursuant to §5 of the
- Local Law an employee found to have wolated the res:dency requirement is deemed to
have voluntarily resigned from hls_or her position. Upon rees_tabllshlng residency,
' fhowever, the employee -is entitled to reinslta'tement' to nis or her former position ifthe
' position is vacant. . | |
In 1996, the C_ity Council amended §5 slightly.to read, in part:
Should the .City Ad-ministrator deoide'thlat the employee is. a
non-resident in violation of this local law, the employee shall
be deemed to have voluntarily resigned from employment.
Upon establishing residency, an individual so resigned may
apply for reinstatement to his or her former position and shall
be remstated if the position is vaoant
On March 9, 2009, the City Council enacted legislation that deleted the sentenoe '

in §5 with respect to employee relnstatement following reestablishment of residency. On

March 20, 2009, the City of Niagara -Falls Mayor (Mayor) approved the amendment and
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it was subsequently filed with the New York Secretary of State. It is undisputed that the

amendment was approved and implemented by the Mayor without negotiations with the

"Police Club.

DISCUSSION

In City of Niagara Faiis,z we held that an appeal procedure for challenging an
initial City determination that a unit member _is 'not_in compliance with the City’s
residency requirement is a mandatory subject. Our_decision was premised upon the |
fact that such a determination by the City adversely affects an employee s terms and
condltions of employment because the determinatlon results in the employee being
deemed to have voluntarily resigned.

In'_.the present case, we affirm the AILJ’s conclusion that the subjects of the Police _
Club's' ci'iarge are mandatory subjects of negotiations under the Act. A proceclu-re for_

the reinstatement of a unit employee tollowing the reestablishment of residency, and the

_r_ight_ to be reinstated to a former poSition if it is vacant, consti_tut_e benefits equivalent to

preferential recall procedures that we have found fo be mandatorilyi negotiable 3
Contrary to the City's argu ment the at—lssue subjects are not pre—empioyment

qualifi catlons but rather benefits for unit employees who retain a contmumg nexus to

City employment despite being deemed to have reSIQned for violating the residency

requurement
We also affirm the ALJ S rejection of the City's argument that it did not have a
duty to negotiate these mandatory subjects under the Act because the Polioe Club did

not demand negotiations. While a demand is a n'ecessary precondition to an obligation

2 43 PERB 1j3006 (2010).

2 Somers Faculty Assoc, 9 PERB 13014 (1976).
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under the Act to negotiate the impact of an employer’s deciéion,“ the duty to negotiate a "
change in a mandatory subject of negotiations do'_es not require a demand.®
Finally, we examine the City’s argument that Public Officer_s Law §30.4(3).
renders the at-issue subjeqts prohibited under the Act. |
| We have prev'iqusl'y held that-the imposition of a residency requirement for police |
officers subject to Public Officers Law §30.4(3) is nonmandatory because it constituté._s |
the exercise of a managerial prerogative.® By its explicit terms, however, Public Offic;,ers |
Law §30.4(3) is applicable to a police force consisting of “_Iess than two hundred full-time
memﬁers.” In the prese’nt.ca'se, the stipulated record does not include an essential fact
necessary to support the City’s afgument that unit members ére subject to thaf state
law: the pdl.ice force has fewe-r. thar; 200 full-time mémbers Therefore, the Clty has
failed to demonstrate that the law is apphcable to Police Club unit members.
Even if we found Public Officers Law §3_Q.4(3) to be.ap_pllcable, the subj_ect of the
qharge is not rens_:iefed pr_dhibited dr nonmandatory by the_statUte. The pléin and clear
language of Public Oﬁicérs Law §30.4(3) gra—nts certain I.oclalities the right to unilaterally

impose a residency requirement on its police officers. The statute, however, does not

contain language that explicitly or implicitly prohibits n_egotiatiolns over related

4 North Baby!on Umon Free Sch D;st 7 PERB 13027 (1974)

® Board of Educ of the City Sch Dist of the City of New York, 40 PERB 113002 (2007)
Great Nec:k Water Pollution Control Dist, 28 PERB 3030 (1995). :

© City of Mount Vemon 18 PERB 1[3020 (1985) Safamanca Police Unit, CSEA, 12

- PERB 13079 (1979)

7 Although the City asserts in its brief that it employs fewer than 200 full-time police
officers, this factual assertion is unsupported by the stipulated record. As we have
previously emphasized, parties bear responsibility to ensure a complete record, either
through a stipulation of facts or through the presentation of ewdence ata hearlng City
of Nfagara Falls, supra, note 2.
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- procedures and rights with .respect to satisfying the residency requiremeﬁt irﬁposed by
'the Cify. Public Oﬁicers Law §30.4(3) is simply not “so unequivocel a directive to take
cer_tain action that it [eayes no roo.m foa{bargaining.”8 .I

ITISTH ERE_FORE ORDERED that the City:

1. Cease and desist from unilatefally implementing the aﬁendment to the
residency law eliminating the precedure and right fo reinstatement .of an
employee to his or her positio'n upon the re—establishmeht of residency if
the position remains vacant;

2. Forthwith extend to.any employee deemed to have resigned pursuantto
the residency I-aw_fhe right to re_instetement upon re-eetabliehing residency
if his or her position. remaine vacant; ) | |

3. Forthwith negotiate the elimination of the Iangeege of the residehcy law .
reéarding r_eilnstetement wit_h the Police Club; and - | |

4. Sign and post the attached notice at all Iocations ndfmal.ly used to
communicate both in wrltlng and electronlcally, with unit employees

DATED May 27, 2011

- Albany, New York .

Jerome Lefko Chal

%@f&—_\

-~ Sheila 8. Cole, Member

-

® Board of Educ of City Sch Dist of City of New York v New York State Pub Empl Rel
Bd, 75 NY2d 660 at 668, 23 PERB 7013 at 7014 (1990). _



NOTICE TO ALL
EMPLOYEES

PURSUANT TO
THE DECISION AND ORDER OF THE

NEW YORK STATE :
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD

and in order to effectuate the.policies of the

NEW YORK STATE
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' FAIR EMPLOYMENT ACT

1. Stop unilaterally implementing the amendment to the residency law
eliminating the procedure and right to reinstatement of an employee to his .
or her positions upon the re-establlshment of re31dency if the p03|t|on
remains vacant; .

F 2, Forthwuth extend to.any employee deemed to have resigned pursuant to
the residency law the right to reinstatement upon re- establlshmg resndency
-if his or her position remalns vacant,

3. Forthwith negotlate the ellmlnetlon of the language of the residency law |
regarding reinstatement with the Police Club. :

(Representative) o (Title)

City of Niagara Falls

This Notice must remain posted for 30 consecutive days from the date of posting, and
must not be altered, defaced, or covered by any other material.



\'u._,.J

STATE OF NEW YORK
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD

In the Matter of

CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION,
INC., LOCAL 1000, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, '
TIOGA COUNTY LOCAL 854, TIOGA
COUNTY EMPLOYEES UNIT 8850,

" Charging Party,
r CASE NO. U-27939 i

~ -and -

Y

COUNTY OF TIOGA,

Respondent.

NANCY E. HOFFMAN, GENERAL COUNSEL (DAREN J. RYLEWICZ of
counsel), for Charging Party

HOGAN' SARZYNSKI, LYNCH, SUROWKA & DEWle, LLP (EDWARD J.
SARZYNSKI of counsel), for Respondent _

'BOARD DEC!SION AND ORDER

_This case comes to the Board on exceptlons filed by the Civil Service Employees

X Assoma’uon Inc., Local 1000 AFSCME, AFL CIO (CSEA) to a decision of an

'Admmlstratlve Law Judge (ALJ) dlsmlssmg an improper practice charge alleglng that

the County of Tioga (Coujnt_y) violated §§209_-a.1(a) and (c) of the Public Employees’ '
Fair Employment Act (Act) when it disciplined six unit mémbers including the CSEA

unit preS|dent and shop steward, for engagmg in protected activity under the Act and

_' when it sought to dlsupllne the unit president and shop steward more Severely than the

other four unit members.
Following a hearing, the ALJ issued a decision dismissing the ohargé, concluding

that fhe at-issue activities of the six unit employees were not protected under the Act.

In addition, the ALJ determined that the County had demonstrated legitimate
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nondiscriminatory reasons for seeking greater disciplinary penalties against the CSEA
unit president and the shop steward. Finally, the ALJ credited the testiroony of the
County personnel director who testified that she was not aware that one of the six unit

employees was a shop steward at the time that the County entered into seitlement

~ discussions with CSEA over the disciplinary claims against the six employees.’

EXCEPTIONS

In its exceptions, CSEA asserts that the ALJ erred in concluding that the at-issue

-~ activities of the six unit employees were not protected under the Act, in credit'ing the .

County personnel director’s testimony that she was unaware of the shop steward’s

status when the parties commenced settlement discussions, and in finding that the

(unequal punishment of the unit president and shop steward did not violate §§209-e.l'-1 (@)

and (¢) of the Act. The Cou'nt_y supports the decisi'c)n. of the ALJ, and asserts there are
no legal or factual bases for reversing the ALJ’s decision. | |

_Based upon our .review of the record and our consideration of the parties’
arguments, we affirm the ALJ's decision, as modified herein.h L

Joan Kellogg (Kellogg) works for the _Counfy Health Depeﬂment'_. She has been'
CSEA unit president for a couhty-wide unit since July 1, 2005. At all times relevant,
Penny Sindooi (Sindoni) ;wlas a Health Department senior typist and a CSEA shop
steward. In 2007 Kellogg sent an email to County Personnel Officer Bethany O'Rourke
(O Rourke) with a list of un|t employees who were shop stewards including Slndonl

During her tenure as umt president, Kellogg processed a number of grievances

including a class action grievance regarding the County’s flexible schedule policy that

143 PERB 14521 (2010).
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was settled at arbitration. In addition, Kellogg discussed other concerns-directly with
County Personnel Officer O'Rourke, although regular Iabor—managemént meetings
between the County and CSEA had been discontinued.

In late 2005, Kellogg began’ receiving verbal compléints from unit member Linda
Cook (Cook) about alleged abuéive workplace conduct by Cook's new immediate
supervisor Christeenia A. Cargil.l (Cargi_ll), the County Healt_h Department Director of

Children with Special Health Care Needs, who had been hired earlier in the year. A few

- months later, unit members Kimberly DeRouchie (DeRouchie) and Gail Barton (Barton)
" made similar verbal complaints to Kellogg about Cargiil’s alleged behavior. Cook,
' DeRouchie and_BartOri also complained to shop stéward Sindoni that Cargill was

verbally abusive and that she slammed doors and glared at people.

In August 2006, County.Personnel Officer O’Rourké,--c.ounty Health Department

_Director Johannes Peeters-(Peeters) and County Director of Administrative Services

Denis McCann (McCann) met with Kellogg and CSEA Labor Relations Specialist

Shawn Lucas (Lucas) to discuss problems in\kolving Kellogg's job perfonﬁanbe. The

- meeting resulted in an agreement that Kellogg would meet more regularly with McCann

to review her workload.
In the surnmer 2006, Kellogg scheduled a meeting with CSEA Labor Relatidns

Specialist Lucas regarding complaints against Cargill. | Present at the meeting were |

.Kellogg and unit members Cook, DeRouchie and Barton. Following that meeting,

'CSEA,participated in a series of meetings with County Personnel Officer O’'Rourke and- _
County Health Department Director Peeters regarding Cargill in late 2006 and 2007.

Lucas or CSEA unit vice-president Lisa Baker (Baker) attended those meetings on
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behalf of CSEA along with Cook and DeRouchie.? Kellogg, Sindoni and Cargill did not
attend -the_meetings. , | | |

| O'Rourke ahd DeRouohie'wete the only participants at the County-‘CSEA
meetings who testified before the AI._J.3 They teetiﬁed that at the meetings Cook and
.DeRouchie expressed frustration with Cargill's supervision and job performance. The
" issues discussed included Cargill’s failure to return client telephone calls, her deleys tn
- completing Cook’s evaluation and Cargill's alleg.ation against Cook for breaching
oonﬁdentiality. There is no evidence in the record that the CSEA representatives or the

unit memhers complained at the meetings that Cargill had engaged in verbal abuse,

slammed doors or that CSEA invoked the County;s workplace violence policy
pro-hibiting disruptive mehacing, three'tening.and abusive behavior At one of the
| meetings with CSEA, O’ Rourke referred to the complamts by DeRouchle and Cook as -’
_“chlldlsh” and between meetings County Health Department Director Peeters spoke |
with Cargll[ about her conduot toward them.

' The result of the County-CSEA meetmgs was the Countys adoptlon of CSEA’s
_ptoposal that the County conduct a traln[ng session in conflict resolution for ell Health
Depart'ment emp]oyees. Consistent with that agreem.ent the County offered the conflict
resolution tralnmg to unit members The record does not mclude any evidence that

CSEA Labor Relations Specialist Lucas and unit vice-president Baker took any__further

-2 Barton resigne_o from County employment in April 2007. Transcript, p. 29.

3 Both were called as County witnesses. CSEA did not call Labor Relations Specialist
~ Lucas, unit vice president Baker-or unit member Cook to testify.

% The training took place in 2007 and not in 2006 as found by the ALJ. Supra, note 1,
43 PERB 14521 at 4580.
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actron with respect to the issues raised regardlng Cargill followmg the County-CSEA
meetlngs Furthermore, there i is no evidence that Lucas or Baker engaged in any
further communications with DeRouchie and Cook or reported the results of the
meetings to Kellogg and Sindoni. | |

.In May-20_07, DeRouchie, Cook, Sindoni _and co-worker Lisa Schumacher
{Schumacher) began wearing a pink:ribbonj at work. The pink ribbon was similar to the

pink ribbon symbol worn for breast cancer awareness.. The activity was originally

' proposed by DeRouchie to show symbollc support for her and Cook. During a
dlsmpllnary interrogation conducted by the County in August 2007, Slndont stated that

‘the ribbon wearing was intended to “show support for each other and we agreed we

would do that because Kim [DeRouchie] was upeet because Gail [Barton] quit.”

~ In May 2007, Kellogg, Sindoni, DeRouchie, Schumacher and Cook had dinner
wir_h their former co-worker Barton. At the time, Kellogg did not wear the pink ribb'o_n.
During the course of their d inner discussion, the phraee “I Hate Teena Club” was
utilized to refer to those wearing the ribbonj Kellogg testified before f‘he ALJ that
DeRouohie, Cook and Barton expressed hatred for Cargill a’E the dinner, and that
Kellogg viewed Cargill as stupid and incompetenf. At some point, unit member Katie |
Searles_(Searles),. who was. not present at the dinner, b'egan wearing the ribbon at work '
es well, | | | | |
| On May 22, 2007, after Kellogg became upset over Cargiil’'s conduct toward her

and Sindoni, Kellogg made a personal complaint to County Direetor of Administrative

* Services Denis McCann (McCann). In addition, she began to wear the ribbon. Kellogg

® Respondent Exhibit 25, pp. 9-10. - This stetement was added by Slndom as part of her
handwritten amendments to the interrogation transcnpt
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- testified before the ALJ that she started wearing the ribbon “in support for everyone

else because | hadn't taken a stand, | tried to stay clear of those issues.”® At her

~interrogation in August 2007, however, Kellogg emphasized that the ribbon vt!earing had

a symbolic personal purpose:
It was intended to give me support for myself because
| felt very intimidated and very, it was for my, to make me -
feel better because | felt so terrible.’ _

On the same day Kellogg began to wear the pink ribbon she'spoke with County
Admlmstratwe ASSIStant Barbara McCormlck (McCormlck) about her recent interaction
with Carglll During their conversation, Ke[logg showed McCormlck the ribbon and
stated that it represented the “l Hate Teena Club.” McCormick testified that she '-

*® Although Kellogg 'denied
attempting to recrult McCorm|ck, _Kellogg admitted telhng McCormick that ene would
also hate Cargill after working with her. McCormick t'eported .Ke_llog'g’s oommente |
about the “I Hat_e Teena C[ub” to County Director of Admi,_nistrative Servioes tVIcCann. _
McCann learned that other employees in the Health Department Were aware of the
existence of the eo-called 'club.l _ | | _

After consultin'g with County Personnel Officer 6’Routke and County Health

Department Dlreotor Peeters, County Director of Admlnlstratwe Sewlces McCann

commenced an mvestlgation on May 25, 2007 Over the next several months, McCann ,

8 Transcript, pp. 4t, 55.
7 Respondent Exhibit 24, p. 14.
® Transcript, pp. 60, 211; Respondent Exhibit 24, p. 15.

® Transcript, pp. '21'1—212;
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prepared a written statement for each employee he interviewed and forwarded the
signed statements to O'Rourke. During the interviews, McCann asked each employee

questions regarding their level of knowledge about the “club,” including which

. employees were members, whether they were solicited to join the club, and whether the

ribbon was an indication of club membership.

Mo(_Bann separately interviewed County employees Mary Gelatt (Gelatt), Nancy

| Dow (Dow) and Roxie Cana\ran’ (Canavan) on May 25, 2007; he interviewed McCormick

and two other County employees during the foliowing week. All of the employees

interviewed by McCann stated that they knew about the club and the related ribbon |

' wearing. McCormick informed McCann that Kellogg solicited her to join; Gelatt

revealed that she had been solicited by Sindoni.
Over Memorlal Day weekend Kellogg learned that County employees were
belng questloned about the cluband the rlbbons In response, she telephoned former

CS EA unlt president Kathleen McEwen (McEwen) to find out whether McEwen thought

. the six employees might be dl_SCIpllned for their oonduct. Durlng the conversatlon,

McEwen expressed her opinion that the ernployeee might faoe__oliscipline.10 K'ellog'g
a_iso tellephone'd-_Labor Relations Specialist Lucas about the ribbons. Lucas
recommended that the employees stop wearin.g them.

Based upon the aétvioe rece.iv.ed from McEwen and Lucas, Kellogg called
Sindoni on May 29, 2007 to encourage her and. the others to stop vrearino the ribbons.
Kellogg stated during her interrogation that she called only Sindoni “because | knew

Linda [Cook] was not at work and Kim [DeRouchie] is frequently hard to get to. | don’t

" Transcript, pp. 194:195.
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know Lisé [Schumacher] or Kétie’s [Searles] numbers.”"" Thereafter, the ribbon
wearing ceased.
In [ate June 2007, during a conversation with CSEA local president I__ynn Wool

(Wool) regarding an uhrelated u\nion 'matfer, Cargill first learned of the existence of a
“hate clul'::”12 Wool mentioned the so-called .C|l..lb in the context of inquiring about how
-Cargill Qvas feeling. Théreafter, Cargill obtained additional information from a co-worker
about the purpose of thé- ribbons that Cargill had previously observed being worn by
IjeRouchie, Cook, Schumacher, Searles énd Sindoni. Cargill met _\;vfth Peeters, who
informed_herthét the Countylf_had beéh investigating the issue but delayed notifyihg her
~ to avoid unnecessarily upéetting her. Cérgil'l' aléﬁ teiephohed fornﬁer CSEA unit
president MdEwen to Iexpress her diSﬁleasure'and fear over the conduct of the other
emp[oyeés.- _ - | |

| -In' July 2007 Cargifl pfeparéd and submitted & _th.reat summary to the County-
Qndef its workplace violence pdlicy. Followiﬁg receipt of Cargill's combi_air;t, the County
Attofney'and O’'Rourke commenced tﬁéir own investigatioﬁ._ The investigation included

interviews with Cargill, Mc_Cormick, Gelatt and other Cou nty e_mployees.

| During hér intérviéw, McCormick reported that Kellogg hated Cargill and Cai‘gill’s
| prede-cessor., é_nd répeated that Kellogg had asked he.r to join t'.he club. S'hé also statéd_ _
that Sindoni dé_scribed'herse.lf as vindiétive and as s'omeo'nel&:vho would retalia_te
against anyone who; provided truthful information to McCann; McCormick also Stéted

-that she and her co-workers feared Sindoni because of Sindoni's angér and

" Respondent Exhibit 24, p. 26.

"2 Joint Exhibit 12, p. 250.
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vindictiveness, é sentiment also expréssed by Cérgill ina sepafat_e interview. Gélatt
repeated to O’'Rourke and the County Attorney that Sindoni solicitet_:l her to join the cl_Ub.
She also reported that’_ Sindoni became very éngry when she [eamed that Gelatt had
provided truthful information to McCann.

As part of the investigation, the Qounty Attornéy and O’Rourke interrogated
Kellogg, Sindoni, DeRouchie,' Cook, Schun'nacher and Searles on August 17, 200?;.
| hFoIIowing ;Lhose interrogations, O’Rourke recomménded that each employée be
disciplined. The prnposed punishmelnts véried, however, based up‘on O’'Rourke’s
judgment of each employee’s specific conduct, Cnoperation during the investigation and |
exnfession o_f' remorse. | .

Consistent with O'Rourke’s recommendations, tne County presented prqpose’d
disciplinary settlements to LUCaS; The pena[ti.es proposed for Kellogg and S.indoni were
. the most _severe": a four-week suspension and'fenninatidn respectively. The County
proposed letters.of repnmand fnr .Searlés_, Schumacher and DeRouchie, and a two-
week suspension without pay for Cook. All of the émployees would.also be required to
personally apologizé to Cargi‘ll. |
| Following-é request from Lucas, O’Rou.rke senﬁ an email outlining the County’s
rationale for seekl_ing dif-ferent-'penalties. Among the stated reaéons for seeking a-more
severe penalty against Kellogg was the allegation thlat Kellogg solicitéd nthers to join.
‘the ciub. The Cnunty subsequently modified ifs -séttlemen't offers by reducing the |
proposed suspension of Cook to one-week and increasing the propnsed penalty of
DeRouchie from a letter of reprimand to a one-w.eek.suspension.

DeRouchie, Cook, Sbhumacher Iénd Séal;les aécepted the sgttlement offérs‘and',

with CSEA’s representation, entered into stipulations of settiement without the County
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filing d.iscipliﬁary charges pursuant to Civil Service Law §75. DeRouchie énd Cook
agreed to one-week suspensions for participating in the club, er_wea'ring the ribbon'aﬁd
for creating a hostile work environment fof Cargill. Searles and Schumacher accepted
a letter of reprimand for being a club member and fqr wearihg the ribbon.
After Kellogg refused to accept the County’s sett[ément offer, she was served
With Civil Service Law §75 charges seeking her termination for breating a hostile work
énvironment and violating the County’s WO'rkaace violence polipy. ‘The charges
included detaiied allegations regarding the wide scope of Ke_llogg‘s;involvement with the
club and the ribbons. thrthefmore, the s;peciﬁcations alleged that Kellogg misused_thé
County’s email system in _Ju'ly and Augﬁst 2007 to send derogato_ry email re,garding
- Cargill and Peeters. Kellbgg waé also charged wifh'certain job p'erforman'ce :
.de'ﬁciehcies that had alreaciy been resolved with the Counfy. Kellbgg entered into a
.settlemen't of the disciplinar'y charges, which was negotiatéd by CSEA';. Under the
seﬂlemeﬁt terms, Kellogg accepted a suspension without pay fr'ém O_ctobér.2, 2007 to
* October 31I, 20I07 for participating .in the club, recruiting new members, wearing the
' ribb_bn and crea.tirfg a hostile work environment for Cargill. As part of the séﬁleheht, )
| Kelllogg aléo agréed toa wfitten warning -regarding her job 'perﬂarmance.
| The Cdunty maihtained its position that Sindoni'shouid either resign or facé
. discipiinary charges seeking her termination? According to O’Rbﬁrke’s testimony, the
severity of the proposed penalty was premised upbn Sindohi having engaged in more
 serious acts of misconduct. ' |
In late September 2007, the County issued Civil Service Law' §75 charges
“against Sindoni sefting forth 16 specific acts of mis;:onduct or inc.ompetence, which the

County alleged created a hostile work environment and violated its workplaé:e violence
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pdlicy. Among the 16 specifications were ailegétions that sﬁe particibated in the club,
wore the ribbon and recruited others to j-o'i.n. In addition, the charges alleged that she_
had a loud argument with Cargill, monitored Cargill's workplace erroré, conversations
and actions, retaliated against co-workers for-speaking to the County about the club,
expressed disappointment to a co-worker for failing to lie, and made threats that caused
co-workers to fear retaliation from her for pérticipating in the County’s investigation.
After a héaring, the Civil Service La_w §75 hearing officer found Sindoni gﬁilty of |
the challges and recommended hgr terminatio'n,'wﬁich the County adopted. An Article
78 proce_ediﬁg was filed cha]iengi'ng the termination, _';Nhich resulted in the Appellate_
| Divisioh, Third Department upholding tﬁe-ter_mination.”

DISCUSSION

—

To demonstrate thét the Clounty’s; disciplinary actions were impropérly moti;fatec_l
| |n 'vioiétibn of §§20_9-é.1(a) and (c) -of the Act CSEA has the burden of demonstrating
. | by a pre_ponderan'ce 0]; evidence thét: é) the aﬁected';.mit émployees engaged in a
‘pro‘tected 'aclti\'fity under the Act; b) such activity v-vaS known to the péfson 01; persoﬁs_
téking_ the adverse employment aétion; and c) the adverse employment actidn would .
not have been -taken. “b'ut for" the ﬁrc_)tected encti\fit)‘f.14 B

In its exceptions, CSEA asserts tha't the six unit employees 'engaged in protected

act'_ivity under the Act when they wore pink ribbons at work. We disagree.

'* Sindoni v County of Tioga, 67 AD3d 1183 (3d Dept 2‘0'09).

" Etwood Union Free Sch Dist, 43 PERB 1]3012 (2010); UFT (Jenkins) 41 PERB {3007
(2008), confirmed sub nom. Jenkins v New York State Pub Emp Rel Bd, 41 PERB
7007 (Sup Ct New York County 2008) affirmed 67 AD3d 567, 42 PERB {[7008 (1st
Dept 2009); City of Salamanca, 18 PERB 3012 (1985); Town of Independence, 23
PERB /3020 (1990); County of Orleans, 25 PERB {[3010 (1992), Stockbridge Valley
Cent Sch Dist, 26 PERB {[3007 (1993); County of Wyoming, 34 PERB 13042 (2001).
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The scope of protected employee activities under §§202 and 203 of the Act is

narrower than the scope of activities protected under §7 of National Labor Relations Aét

(NLRA)." This difference in the scope of statutory protections emanates from the fact

that unlike §7 of thé NLRA, the Act does not protect employees who engage in
colnc';erted activiti_éé for “mutual aid and pru::ntection.”lﬁ5 .Tﬁérefore, in order for conduct to
be found to be a protected concerted_aqtivity for purposes of the Act, it must have some -
relationship with forming, joilning of pahrticipating in an employee organization.

"To determine whether a particular activity is protected under the Act we evaluate -
“tHe totality of ail relevant circumstances, with a focus upon thg ﬁurpoée a.nd effect of
that activity.”'" As part of that evaluation, we must examine the content of the activity in -
the contekt of all relevant surrounding circumstances.

_ Erhployee__statements and actions that are organized, prompted or encouraged
by an employee organization Will, in. general,-be found to be protected conceﬁed abtiVity

for purposes of the Act. The w.ide scope of protected concerted activitiés under the Act

includes statements and -activities by a unit employee as part of an employee '

organizational activity, relates to an employee organization policy, involves employee -

organizational representation or stems from a dispute emanating from a collectively

% 20 USC §157. See also, Rosen v New York State Pub Empl Rel Bd, 72 NY2d 42, 21
PERB 1[7014 (1988); NYCTA v New York State Pub Empl Rel Bd, 8 NY3d 226, 40
PERB 17001 (2007); Love Cana! Area Rewtahzatron Agency (Bannister}), 28 PERB
13040 (1995).

'® 29 USC §157. | N | o

"7 Village of Scotia, 29 PERB 43071, at 3169 (1996), confirmed sub nom. Village of
Scotia v New York State Pub Empl Rel Bd, 241 AD2d 29, 31 PERB {7008 (3d Dept
1998). See also, Metropolitan Suburban Bus Auth (Lomuscio), 23 PERB 13006 (1990);
NYCTA (Alston), 20 PERB 14575 (1987) affd 20 PERB {[3085 (1987).
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negotiated agreement.™ In suoh contexts, the concerted wearing of ribbons and other -
symbolic forms of speech or protest by unit members will be generally protected under
the Act, partioulerly when employees are permitted to wear ribbons or Iotll'ler emblems at
work in support ot other_ causes.

Based upon the facts and circumstances presented in this record, however, we
conclude that the wearing of pink ribbons by the six unit_employees is not protected
concerted activity under the Act. The record evidence demonstratee thatl while the
ribbonl wearing was concerted, in the generic senee, it_wa.s unrelated to forming, joining .
or participating in .an -employee organization. Instead, the symbolic 'spleech was for the
ptirpose of expressing on[y a sharedl personal animu_s regarding Cargill, a sign of
camaraderie tied to that dislike and an expression of snpport for each other.

The ribbon wearing commenced\only after CSEA completed its meetings with
the County, which resutted in.the conflict resolution tra-ining. The activity was not
related to any ongoing CSEA representation. It did not stem from the terms of the. |
oollectlvely negotlated agreement or a pendlng claim under the County s workplace
wolence policy. Nor was it part of a symbollo campalgn against the County or Carglll for
allegedly falllng to comply with the County s pollcy

In reaching our conclusions, we infer from CSEA’s failure to calt Labor Relations

. . / N ’
Specialist Lucas and unit vice president Baker as witnesses that.they would have

'® |In certain limited circumstances, conduct in the workplace with a nexus to
organizational activity may be found unprotected under the Act but only when the
objective evidence demonstrates that under the totality of the circumstances it is
overzealous, confrontational or actually disruptive. State of New York (Division of.
Parole), 41 PERB /3033 (2008). To prove that defense, however, an employer must
present objective evidence of disruption emanating from the conduct. It cannot rely.
upon a mere prediction of disruption or a workplaoe d|srupt|on caused by its own
overreaction to the at-issue conduct.
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testified that they were unaware of the ribbon wéaring until after the Couhty
commenced its investigation, that the activity was not related to their disbussions with
the Cqunty regarding unit employeés’ complaints and that in their judgment the c@nﬂi'ct
resolution training adequately resolved the employee éqmplaintshabout Cargill's |
supervision.'® | | |

The eifidence demonstrates tﬁat CSEA did not qrganize or encourage the
symbolic .conduct by the six uni.t members. While Kélllogg ahd Sindoni ho'lld CSEA
offices: the context of theirinvblverﬁent demonstrates that they did not wear the
ribbons, or encdurage others to do so, in their union capagcities. _Rathelj, theylwore the
ribbons because of their strong personal dislike of Qargill. ‘Kellogg began wearing the
ribbon dnly after a.direct incident with Cargill, which resulted i|;| Kellogg filing a “personal

complaint” %

with McCann., Duriné her interr_ogation, éindoni cahdidly acknowledged
her continued dislike for Cargill, which stemmed, in part, from a dress code corhplaint
~ she made against Cargill.*' Furthermore, we note that Kellogg and Sindoni did not cite
t;.) thei.r CSEA titles, duties or 'activitie_s during their resbec:tive interrogations or in their
subsequent ha_ndwi'itten-amendments fo the interrogation transcripts.' .

We next turn to CSEA’s exdeption challenging the ALJ's crediting of O’Rourke’s
testimony that she was unéware of Sindoni’s shop SteWard sia_tus at the time that the

County decided upon the disciplinary penalties it would seek including Sindoni's

resignation or termination.

'° State of New York (Division of Parole), supra, note 18. _
% Brief of Charging Party in Support of Exceptions; p.3.

21 Respondént Exhibit 25, pp.. 11-12.
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: Credibility'déterminations by anIALJ are generally entitled to substantial
deference by the Board.? In the pres_ent case, we find n'o objective evidence in the
recérd to disturb the ALJ’s credibility finding that O’Rourke did not recall- Sindoni’s ghop
steward status a_t the time that the County commenced settlement discussions with
CSEA. While Kellogg may have included Sindoni on a list of shop stéwards emailedto
O’Rourke, it is quite-plausible that O’Rourke may have fbrgotten the content of that
email, particularly when Sindoni had no interactions with O'Rourke in her shop stewérd
role and Sindoni did not mention her CSEA statﬁs during her interrégaﬁon. Based upon
the foregoing, we deny CSEA’s second exception. - |

Finally, we examiné'bSEA’s eﬁ(ception seeking to ofvertu.m Ithe ALJ's finding that
'thé more severe disciplinary penalties sought against,KeIiogg and Sindoni weré
motiva;ted by their status in CSEA inr violation of §§209-a.1(a) énd (c) of the Act.

' Based_ upon odr review of the récord., we Conclqd_e that CSEA failed to-
demonstrate by a preponderance of the evid_ehce that the diécipl'inary penalties were

. motivated by Kellogg-and Sindoni’s ofganizational étatus or activities.
With respect.to Sindoni, CSEA failed to pro've an essential element of its prir_ﬁa
.facfe case: that the Counf.y was coghiéant of her statué as.-a shop étewafd at thé time it
- decided to seek her resignation or c'llischarge. Therefore, we affirm the ALJ's decisio_n
dismissing the amended chargé as it relates to the discip[ina;r'y penalty a_gain'st Sindoni.
Even if we were to reach a differerit cohcluéion on the _issue of the County‘_s

knowledge, however, we would find that the respective punishments sought by the

County were not improperly motivated.,

22 prount Morris Cent Sch Dist, 41 PERB 13020 (2008).
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The pursuit of more severe penailties against the two CSEA officers is not
dispositive proof of imp'roper motivation.”® Those disparities, as well as the resurrection
~of other jeb perforl;nance issues regarding Kellogg, and Sindoni’s prior work history -
constitute circumstantial evidence of improper motivation.* However, the County
presented legitimate nondiscriminatory reasons for its actions demonstrating that
Kellogg and Sindoni were not eimilarly sitdated to the other four unit members. The
e'vide.nlce reveals that the County seught harsher ;:-:Ienalties against them because their
alleged misconduct was of a greater magnitude than that con'imitted by the dther
employees. Both were reported to have solicited others to participate and Sindoni was
: 'accused of making threats that created fear among her co-workers and engaging in

other mlsconduct toward Cargill. The fact that Cargill may have feared both SlndOI‘Il
| and DeRouchie d-oes-lnot demonstrate that the County’s reasons for seekihd harsher
~ penalties against Kellogg and Si'ndor_li were pretextual., | | |

_Based upon the foregding, the decision of the ALJ is affirmed as m‘odiﬁed.

IT 1S, THEREFORE, ORDERED tha.t.CSEA’_s exceptions are denied, and the |
eharge is dismissed.

DATED: May 27, 2011 _
Albany, New York

>

/ Jerome Lefkoyfitz, Chg‘fp’erson
o

- _ ShetlaS Cole, Board Member

2 County of Cattaraugus, 24 PERB 13001 (1991). .

" * Hudson Valley Comm Coll, 25 PERB 3039 (1992).
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